
ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Zoning Board of Adjustment  
27 School Street  

HILLSBOROUGH, NH  
June 13, 2022  

 
   DATE APPROVED: 07/18/22 

TIME: 7:00 p.m. – 8:30 p.m.  
CHAIRPERSON: Roger Racette 
VICE CHAIRPERSON: Russell Galpin 
MEMBERS: Lucy Pivonka, John Segedy, Meg Curtis 
PLANNING DIRECTOR: Robyn Payson 
ALTERNATES:  Mark Bodanza, Cynthia Matthews 
EXCUSED Meg Curtis, Cynthia Matthews 
Public Present: Allen Davies, Shawn Kelley 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
Roger Racette called the meeting to order at 7:00pm 
 
Roger appointed Alternate Mark Bodanza to sit in place of Member Meg Curtis-Sauer. 
 
All members and the alternate present would be voting in this meeting.   
 
John Segedy suggested that a procedure be established to ask people who participate in the 
meeting for their preferred pronouns.  He said it would be respectful and assist the minute taker 
in writing the minutes accurately.  He said there could be a column on the sign in sheet asking 
for preferred pronouns. 
 
There was a brief discussion about this matter. 
 
Roger asked the Board members what their preferred pronouns were.   
 
Minutes  
 
05/09/2022 Roger Racette made a motion to table the minutes until the July meeting.  Russ 
Galpin seconded the motion.  John Segedy asked that the draft minutes be put on the Town 
website.  Robyn Payson said that only the approved minutes were put on the website.  John 
Segedy proposed an amendment to the motion to direct the Planning Director to have the 
unapproved minutes up on the Town website until they are approved.  The amendment died for 
lack of a second.  Roger Racette called for a vote on the original motion.  The motion carried 
with John Segedy voting no.   
 
 
 



ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Public Hearing 
 
Variance 
15 Bridge Street (Map 23 Lot 160) 
Kim Opperman 
 
It was discovered that the applicant needed to apply for a Special Exception in addition to the 
Variance they applied for.  The reason for the Special Exception is because the number of 
dwellings in the building will increase from four to five.  The applicant’s representative was 
asked whether they wanted to proceed with the variance and come back for the Special 
Exception.  Representative for the applicant, Sean Kelley called the applicant to find out their 
preference in the matter.  Mr. Kelley said upon speaking to the applicant, they would rather wait 
until the July meeting to present both applications. 
 
John Segedy made a motion that the fee for the additional notices for the special exception be 
waived.  Roger Racette seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  The applicant 
will only be responsible for the application fee for the Special Exception. 
 
John Segedy made a motion to continue the application to July 11th.  Roger Racette seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
Work Meeting 
 
Voting 
 
Roger Racette brought up how abstaining from votes on the five criteria for a Variance 
essentially makes the Board a “four-person Board”.  He said this gives the applicant a 20% less 
chance of being approved.   
 
Ordinarily, if there is a four-person Board the applicant is given the option of continuing their 
hearing until a full Board is present.  He said they don’t want to submit an applicant to a four-
person Board because of an abstention.   
 
Roger said one way they can deal with this issue is to change the way the Board votes on 
variances to a single vote that would be a vote on all five criteria.  If for some reason during the 
testimony a member feels they should abstain from the vote, that gives him the opportunity to 
appoint an alternate for that vote.  That way they avoid the four-man Board.  RSA 674:33, I c 
applies to voting, states that the method must be consistent until it is changed by a vote of the 
Board.  The new way of voting would take effect 60 days after the vote.   
 
Roger said that he was thinking about proposing changing the way that the Board votes, from 
voting on each criteria separately to a single vote either in favor or not in favor of the 
application.   
 



ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Roger made a motion that the Board formally change they way they vote from voting on each 
individual criteria to a single vote that covers all five criteria.  Lucy Pivonka seconded the 
motion.   
Roger opened the motion up for discussion.   
 
Robyn Payson pointed out that the Board would discuss the criteria in the same way regardless 
of the method of voting.   
 
John Segedy said the value of voting on each criteria is it makes the Board member consider 
each one.  He said a person who votes no on any of the criteria should vote no on the application.  
He said if someone was going to abstain, they should know it in advance.   
 
Roger said when dealing with abstention, you can’t force someone to give a yes or no vote.  He 
said the point was to put a safeguard in place so that situation will not happen.   
 
John Segedy said he saw when a previous Chairman changed the voting method to one vote, the 
criteria were not discussed as carefully as they should have.   
 
Lucy Pivonka said, as someone who has been on the Board using both methods of voting, the 
discussion about the criteria has been just as detailed and in depth either way.   
 
Roger said as long as the court could determine that each of the criteria were discussed then that 
would be good enough.   
 
Russ Galpin said that there may be something that comes up during the hearing that the member 
did not realize, that would make the member want to recuse themselves.  If that happens the 
member can recuse themselves and an alternate can be appointed for the vote.  He said the main 
problem is that there may not be enough alternates. 
 
Roger said if that happened, they would need to offer the applicant the option to continue the 
hearing until there was a five-person Board.   
 
Roger asked Russ what he thought about the different voting methods.  Russ said it didn’t matter 
as long as the five criteria were thoroughly discussed before the vote.   
 
There was further discussion about the different voting methods.   
 
Roger Racette re-stated his motion.  His motion was to change the ZBA’s method of voting from 
voting on each criteria to a single vote on all five criteria.  The change would be effective at the 
meeting in August of 2022  He said that is the 60 days required by the RSA.  John Segedy 
seconded the motion. 
 
John Segedy said there was also a rule on not voting on changes until the meeting after the 
change is first presented.  He suggested there not be any vote on this until the next meeting.   
 



ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Robyn Payson said that would be on the Rules of Procedure and these are two separate issues.  
The method of voting is not included in the Rules of Procedure.   
 
Russ Galpin asked if Town Counsel had weighed in on this issue.  Roger Racette said he had and 
the single vote method was preferred by him.   
 
There was discussion about the method of voting being addressed in the current Rules of 
Procedure.  There was also further discussion on the method of voting.   
 
Following discussion, Lucy Pivonka said the method of voting should be in writing in the Rules 
of Procedure.   
 
Roger agreed. 
 
John Segedy made a motion to table this matter until the July meeting.  Roger Racette seconded 
the motion.   
 
Roger Racette asked if after voting on the five criteria, the Board would need to make a final 
vote to approve.  Russ Galpin said that it would because you can’t apply conditions to the vote 
on the five criteria but you could on a final vote to approve.   
 
Roger withdrew his motion to change the method of voting.   
 
Lucy Pivonka asked if this would go to Town Counsel. 
 
Robyn Payson said it would and that she would work on some language and submit it to Town 
Counsel to make sure it is written in the best way possible.   
 
John Segedy said he wanted to discuss how the changes to the Rules of Procedure came about.  
He said that in the minutes of the previous meeting, it was stated that Robyn Payson had worked 
with Roger Racette and Town Counsel on the changes.  He said that the Board never voted to 
have them do that.  John Segedy asked who the attorney was representing.   
 
Roger said he was providing guidance to the Board.  John Segedy said then that means if the 
Board is going to seek his advice, it ought to be by motion of the Board.  He said going forward 
if they are going to do something like that like it is an emergency or something comes up on an 
application that they need advice, the Chairman and the Planning Director could get an opinion 
but for normal business the Board should vote on it.   
 
John Segedy said he came up with proposed changes on his own.  He said that Roger said the 
Board would discuss them, he said Roger did not say that he and Robyn would go right to the 
attorney.  He said that was basically a subcommittee which has rules and regulations about 
noticing and minutes. 
 
Roger asked if he was suggesting that any time, we need to seek a legal opinion the Board should 
vote? 



ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
John Segedy said if it is not an emergency, it should be voted on by the Board.   
 
Roger said Robyn Payson as Town Planner can seek legal guidance. 
 
John Segedy said it has to be the same attorney. 
 
Robyn Payson said it was the Town’s attorney.   
 
Robyn Payson said that all of the changes that were brought forward were suggestions, and they 
could have been changed or rejected by the Board.   
 
Roger said that the Board was not bound to anything that was proposed.   
 
John Segedy said he realized that, but that he was making a suggestion for moving forward to 
have a clearer and more open procedure.  He said that they had formed a subcommittee.  He said 
it would have been better to do it under the auspices of the Board.   
 
Robyn Payson said that there was no subcommittee formed.  She said that she went through the 
Rules of Procedure and made suggestions.   
 
Lucy Pivonka said as someone who has sat there and listened to a lot of meetings with a lot of 
Boards, it is very common that the Chairman take consulting with counsel on as part of their 
unpaid duties.  There is nothing out of line about that.   
 
John Segedy said he is not saying that there was a problem in doing it, just if they do it be 
through the Board.  He referred to page one of the minutes of the previous meeting: 
 
“Robyn distributed to the Board a copy of the Rules of Procedure that she had amended with 
Roger Racette and with input from Chris Boldt (Land use Counsel).” 
 
Lucy Pivonka said that then the Board talked about it.   
 
John Segedy said they did and what he was suggesting was that it  be the Board’s decision.  He 
said, instead of working on these as a Board, they didn’t want to talk about his suggestions.  He 
said Roger could have said that “Robyn and I will work on something and bring it to you”.  Then 
the Board could have taken a vote or done it by consensus.   
 
Lucy Pivonka said she wanted to point out that the Board did talk about his suggestions, so 
please don’t say the Board did not talk about them. 
 
John Segedy said they Board refused to deal with them that night. 
 
Lucy Pivonka said that the Board talked about them.  She said that John Segedy made a motion 
that was not seconded.  She said that is not the same as not being willing to talk about them, he 
just didn’t get what he wanted.   



ZBA Minutes June 13, 2022 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
John Segedy asked if the Board was going to discuss the Rules of Procedure that Robyn sent to 
the Board with the attorney’s input? 
 
Robyn Payson said she wanted to point out that there were two items that she added since the last 
meeting.  The first was to clarify that staff would be sitting at the table with the Board and the 
second was that all alternates would be able to sit at the table for work sessions.  She said other 
than that everything has been reviewed by the attorney and it is all legal.   
 
Roger Racette said he didn’t see anything wrong with what Robyn is doing.   
 
John Segedy said he was just suggesting that it should have been done with the Board.   
 
Roger said he was ready to adjourn the meeting. 
 
John Segedy asked if they were going on to the Rules of Procedure.  He asked what the point 
was of getting the legal opinion if they were not going to use it. 
 
Roger Racette asked what opinion he was referring to. 
 
John Segedy referenced an e-mail sent by Robyn Payson to the Board summarizing the 
attorney’s opinion.   
 
The Board did not have the e-mail referred to in front of them. 
 
Lucy Pivonka said she didn’t bring the e-mail, she made a motion to discuss it at the next 
meeting.  She asked John Segedy to forward the e-mail to Robyn and they could see it.  Roger 
Racette seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
John Segedy asked if they were going to discuss the Rules of Procedure as it is on the agenda? 
 
Roger said that was on the agenda to discuss changing the method of voting. 
 
John Segedy said he assumed they were on there because the Board had asked Robyn to get a 
legal opinion on the changes.   
 
Roger Racette made a motion to adjourn.  John Segedy seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Meeting Adjourned 8:30 pm 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Robyn Payson, Planning Director 
 


	DATE APPROVED: 07/18/22
	PLANNING DIRECTOR: Robyn Payson

